

The C.L.B. Constitution



incorporating amendments to November 18, 2008

THE CHURCH LADS' BRIGADE

MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION

and

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

April 2, 1980

incorporating amendments approved

February 19, 1983

June 1, 1985

May 13, 1989

November 13, 1993

November 19, 1996

November 18, 2008

The Companies Act Chapter 54

of the

Revised Statutes of Newfoundland 1970

MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION

of

THE CHURCH LADS' BRIGADE

1. The name of the organization is "THE CHURCH LADS' BRIGADE"— (sometimes referred to as "The Brigade", or "The C.L.B.").
2. The registered Office of the Organization will be situated in St. John's, Newfoundland, Canada.
3. The object of the Brigade shall be the advancement of Christ's Kingdom among youth; the promotion of Christian charity, reverence, discipline, self-respect and all that tends towards true Christian character.
4. The following methods, inter alia, shall be adopted in order to achieve the above object of the Brigade:-
 - (a) Religious instruction consistent with the doctrine and practice of the Anglican Church of Canada;
 - (b) Religious, educational, physical and recreative activities;
 - (c) The symbolic use of such military organization, training, and equipment as shall be deemed to promote the object of the Brigade.
5. The Brigade shall have the power and authority:-
 - (a) To purchase, lease, take in exchange, or otherwise acquire and hold, real and personal property and interests therein, including - without limiting the generality of the foregoing - lands whether vacant, improved or otherwise, together with any buildings, structures or fixtures that may be on such lands or any of them; and to sell, demise, mortgage, give in exchange for or otherwise dispose of same;
 - (b) To purchase, lease, take on loan, import or otherwise acquire; deal in and with; hold and use; sell or otherwise dispose of all types of uniforms, badges, medals,

bugles, drums, band instruments of every kind and description; all manner of equipment and articles used in the gymnasium or on the playing field and materials, goods, wares and merchandise of every kind and description used in connection with the work or activities of the Brigade;

- (c) To design, erect, construct, re-construct, alter, improve, manage, decorate, furnish, equip and maintain buildings upon lands belonging to the Brigade, or upon lands controlled by the Brigade;
- (d) To establish, lay out, develop, alter, improve, maintain, own and operate Camp sites and recreational areas;
- (e) To carry out such projects as may be deemed expedient by the Brigade Council for the purpose of raising funds to carry on the work of the Brigade and to meet the administrative expenses of the operation of the Brigade;
- (f) To borrow money in such manner as the Brigade shall think fit, to make and issue promissory notes, bills of exchange, bonds, debentures and evidences of indebtedness of all kinds, without limit as to the amount and to secure the same by mortgage, pledge or otherwise;
- (g) To enter into any arrangement with any government or authority, Federal, Provincial, Municipal, local or otherwise, that may seem conducive to do all such other things as the Brigade may from time to time deem incidental or conducive to the attainment of the above objects or any of them;
- (h) To hire and employ secretaries, clerks, managers, cooks, servants and workmen and pay them and other persons in return for services rendered to the Brigade, salaries, wages, gratuities and pensions;
- (i) To receive any gifts to assist in carrying out the purposes of the Brigade;
- (j) To provide facilities for members and guests to play and participate in indoor and outdoor sports and pastimes;
- (k) To conduct, hold and promote athletic matches of all kinds and all other amusements, recreations, sports and entertainments;
- (l) To invest the moneys of the Brigade not immediately required in such manner as may from time to time be determined by the Brigade Council;
- (m) To do all such acts and things as the Brigade may from time to time deem incidental or conducive to the attainment of the above objects or any of them.

6. The income, profits and property of the Brigade wheresoever derived shall be applied solely towards the promotion of the objects of the Brigade as set forth in this Memorandum of Association and no portion thereof shall be paid or transferred directly or indirectly by way of dividend, bonus, or otherwise howsoever by way of profit to the members of the Brigade. Provided that nothing herein contained shall prevent the payment in good faith of remuneration to any member of the Brigade, or other person, in return for any services actually rendered or goods delivered to the Brigade.
7. The sixth paragraph of this Memorandum of Association is a condition on which a licence is granted by the Provincial Government under the hand of the Minister of Consumer Affairs and Environment to the Brigade in pursuance of Section 253 of the Companies Act, Chapter 54, of the Revised Statutes of Newfoundland 1970, as amended.
8. The liability of the members is limited to One Dollar (\$1.00) each.
9. If, on the winding up or dissolution of the Brigade, there remains after the satisfaction of all its debts and liabilities, any property whatsoever, the same shall not be paid to or distributed amongst the members of the Brigade but shall be given to the Anglican Diocese in which the Brigade operates. In the event that more than one Diocese is involved, the proportionate division among such Dioceses shall be as directed by the Brigade Council.

The Companies Act Charter 54

of the

Revised Statutes of Newfoundland 1970

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

of

THE CHURCH LADS' BRIGADE

-ARTICLE I-

Section 1.01 The regulations contained in Table A to The Companies Act shall not apply to the Brigade.

-ARTICLE II-

Section 2.01 **MEMBERSHIP:**

Membership of the Brigade shall consist of:-

- (a) All members of the Brigade Council;
- (b) All Officers (including Chaplains and Assistant Chaplains), Officer Candidates, Warrant Officers and Civilian Instructors, on their appointment by the Brigade Council;
- (c) Non-Commissioned Officers and boys and girls of the Senior Corps, boys and girls of the Junior Training Corps (herein referred to as "J.T.C."), boys and girls of the Young Training Corps (herein referred to as "Y.T.C."), and boys and girls of the Little Training Corps (herein referred to as "L.T.C.") by admission;
4. Officers and members of cadet corps sponsored by the Church Lads' Brigade.

Section 2.02 **APPLICANTS' DECLARATION:**

Applicants for membership shall declare their willingness to obey the rules and regulations of the Brigade before admission.

Section 2.03 **FORMAL ADMISSION:**

At the discretion of the Incumbent such applicants may be admitted formally at a Service in Church.

Section 2.04 **HONOURARY MEMBERSHIP:**

Honourary Membership may be bestowed upon helpers of the Brigade at its discretion by the Brigade Council, acting on its own initiative or on nomination by Company Chaplains or Commanding Officers.

-ARTICLE III-

Section 3.01 **THE BRIGADE COUNCIL:**

There shall be a Brigade Council which shall manage, control and direct all of the affairs of the Church Lads' Brigade for the three Dioceses of the Anglican Church of Canada in the civil Province of Newfoundland and Labrador. All the assets of the Brigade shall be held in the name of the Brigade Council.

Section 3.02 **MEMBERSHIP OF THE BRIGADE COUNCIL:**

The Brigade Council shall consist of:

- (i) A Chairman, who shall usually be a C.L.B. Officer, to be elected by the Brigade Conference;
- (ii) The Bishops of Eastern Newfoundland and Labrador, Central Newfoundland, and Western Newfoundland;
- (iii) The Officer Commanding each Regiment;
- (iv) A lay member of the Synod of each Diocese, elected by the respective Synod;
- (v) Five officers, to be elected by the Brigade Conference;
- (vi) A Company representative, not under the rank of Sergeant, from each Battalion, to be elected by the Officers, Warrant Officers and Non-Commissioned Officers of each Battalion.

Section 3.03 **TERMS OF OFFICE:**

The term of office of the members of the Brigade Council shall be as follows:-

- (i) The Chairman shall serve for three (3) years and may be elected for a further two (2) years;
- (ii) The Bishops and Regimental Commanding Officer(s) shall have membership while they hold their respective offices.
- (iii) Lay members of the Synod of each Diocese shall be appointed by the respective Synod for two (2) years and may be re-appointed for a further two (2) years;
- (iv) The terms of the five elected Officers shall be three years or two years coinciding with the Chairman's term of office; however they may be re-elected to any number of successive terms by the Brigade Conference;
- (v) Members of the Brigade Council who are C.L.B. Officers shall relinquish their membership if they cease being Officers prior to the normal expiry of their appointment;
- (vi) Persons appointed to replace members of the Brigade Council who relinquished their membership prior to the normal expiry of their appointment shall be entitled to serve full terms as if their predecessors had completed their appointments.

Section 3.04 **CHAIRMAN OF THE BRIGADE COUNCIL:**

- (a) The Chairman of the Brigade Council shall be the Governor and Commandant of the Church Lads' Brigade in Newfoundland and Labrador and hold the rank of Colonel.
- (b) If for good and sufficient reason a suitable C.L.B. Officer is not available for election as Chairman of the Brigade Council, the Brigade Council may elect a suitable person who is not a C.L.B. Officer.

Section 3.05 **MEETINGS OF THE BRIGADE COUNCIL:**

- (a) The Brigade Council shall meet at least four (4) times each year.
- (b) The quorum for a meeting shall be fifty percent (50%) plus one of the members.
- (c) Each member shall have only one (1) vote on any question or resolution raised or considered at a meeting of the Brigade Council.

Section 3.06 **EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF THE BRIGADE COUNCIL:**

- (a) The Executive Committee shall consist of:- the Chairman, the five elected Brigade Council Officers and the senior Regimental Commander;
- (b) The Executive Committee shall have such powers and perform such duties as shall be delegated to it by the Brigade Council.

Section 3.07 **DUTIES AND POWERS OF THE BRIGADE COUNCIL:**

- A. The Brigade Council shall:-
 - (i) Determine the date, time and place of each Brigade Conference, and give no less than six (6) weeks notice of such date, time and place to all Company Chaplains and Officers;
 - (ii) Render to the Brigade Conference reports and audited financial statements.
- B. The Brigade Council shall have power to determine the policy and to carry out the ordinary business of the Brigade in accordance with the Constitution and Object; and, in particular, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, it shall have power:-
 - (i) To enroll Companies, and to encourage the formation of new Battalions and Regiments;
 - (ii) To grant at its discretion commissions, ranks and appointments to Officers; warrants and appointments to Warrant Officers; and appointments to Civilian Instructors; all of whom shall be regular communicant members of a Church within the Anglican Communion (save that the Brigade Council may, at its discretion, and in special circumstances, grant exemption from this requirement);
 - (iii) To issue such Regulations, Orders and Instructions as shall be deemed best for the welfare of the Brigade;
 - (iv) To suspend or disband any Company or higher formation when deemed necessary;
 - (v) To suspend or remove from the Brigade any individual member when deemed necessary;

- (vi) To appoint such committees as shall be required from time to time and determine the membership of such committees;
- (vii) To assess Companies, Battalions and Regiments for funds to meet the expenses of the Brigade Council, which assessment shall be submitted to the Brigade Conference for approval.

Section 3.08 **EXTRAORDINARY COMMITTEES:**

- (a) The Brigade Council may appoint a Committee of Enquiry, from within or without the membership of the Brigade as it shall deem advisable, to enquire into any matter concerning any unit, formation or individual member of the Brigade.
- (b) The Brigade Council may appoint a Committee of Appeal, from within or without the membership of the Brigade as it shall deem advisable, to hear any appeal or complaint from any Officer commanding any unit or formation, or from any individual member of the Brigade, concerning any action that the Brigade Council may have taken relating to such unit, formation or individual member. Any such appeal or complaint must first have been put in writing and addressed to the Secretary of the Brigade Council.
- (c) Any Committee of Inquiry or of Appeal shall make its majority report to the Brigade Council in writing. The Brigade Council may also receive, at its discretion, any minority report of such Committee as may be presented in writing.

-ARTICLE IV-

THE BRIGADE CONFERENCE

Section 4.01 **MEMBERSHIP OF THE BRIGADE CONFERENCE:**

Voting members of the Brigade Conference shall be:-

- (i) Members of the Brigade Council;
- (ii) Company Chaplains;
- (iii) An Officer from each Company;
- (iv) A representative of each constituted lodge of the Old Comrades Association.

Other Officers may attend meetings as Observing Members without the right to vote.

Section 4.02 **MEETINGS OF THE BRIGADE CONFERENCE:**

- (a) The Brigade Conference shall meet each three (3) years or two (2) years near the completion of each term of the Chairman, at a time and place determined by the Brigade Council;
- (b) Special meetings of the Brigade Conference may be called by the Brigade Council, upon four (4) weeks notice being sent to all Company Chaplains and Officers, such notice to contain the reason or reasons for such special meeting;
- (c) A quorum for any meeting of the Brigade Conference shall be twenty (20) of the voting members, providing that at least fifty percent (50%) of the active companies, battalions and regiments are represented.

Section 4.03 **POWERS OF THE BRIGADE CONFERENCE:**

The Brigade Conference shall have the power to:-

- (a) Elect the Chairman and five other officers to the Brigade Council;
- (b) Receive reports and audited financial statements from the Brigade Council;
- (c) Approve any assessments levied by the Brigade Council on Companies, Battalions and Regiments;
- (d) Amend this Constitution in accordance with the formula provided in Section 4.05;
- (e) Conduct other business for the good of the Brigade.

Section 4.04 **OFFICERS OF THE BRIGADE CONFERENCE:**

The Chairman, the Secretary and the Treasurer of the Brigade Council shall have the same Offices for the Brigade Conference.

Section 4.05 **AMENDMENTS TO THE CONSTITUTION:**

This Constitution may be amended by a duly constituted meeting of the Brigade Conference in the following manner:-

- (a) By adopting, by a simple majority of the voting members present, a resolution presented by the Brigade Council providing such resolution

was sent to all voting members of the Brigade Conference not less than six (6) weeks prior to the meeting; or

- (b) By adopting, by a majority of two-thirds of the eligible voting members, a resolution presented by the Brigade Council, if such resolution was sent to all voting members of the Brigade Conference less than six (6) weeks prior to the meeting; or
- (c) By adopting, by a simple majority of the voting members present, at two consecutive regular meetings of the Brigade Conference, a resolution presented by any voting member.

Section 4.06 **INTERPRETATION OF THE CONSTITUTION:**

In the event of there being any dispute or question arising in connection with the interpretation of this Constitution, the same shall be considered by the Brigade Council whose decision shall be final.

-ARTICLE V-

FORMATIONS

THE REGIMENT

Section 5.01 **THE DIOCESAN REGIMENT:**

A Diocesan Regiment shall consist of not less than two (2) active Battalions in any Diocese, and all the Unattached Companies in that Diocese.

Section 5.02 **THE COMPOSITE REGIMENT:**

The Composite Regiment shall comprise a group of Dioceses or parts of Dioceses which have insufficient Companies or Battalions to form separate Diocesan Regiments.

Section 5.03 **COMMAND OF A REGIMENT:**

- (a) The Officer Commanding a Diocesan Regiment shall be nominated by the Bishop of the Diocese in consultation with the Chaplains and Officers of the Diocesan Regiment, and appointed by the Brigade Council.
- (b) The Officer Commanding a Composite Regiment shall be nominated by the Bishops of the Dioceses concerned in consultation with the

Chaplains and Officers of the Composite Regiment, and appointed by the Brigade Council.

- (c) The Regimental Commander shall nominate a Regimental Staff for appointment by the Brigade Council.
- (d) The Regimental Commander shall be appointed for three (3) years and may be appointed for a further two (2) years.

Section 5.04 **REGIMENTAL CHAPLAIN:**

- (a) The Bishop of the Diocese shall be, ex-officio, Chaplain of the Diocesan Regiment and, if unwilling or unable to act in that capacity, shall nominate a member of the Clergy of the Diocese for appointment by the Brigade Council as Regimental Chaplain.
- (b) In the case of a Composite Regiment, the Bishops of the Dioceses concerned shall appoint one of their number to be Regimental Chaplain. If none of them is willing or able to act in that capacity, they shall nominate a member of the Clergy from one of the Dioceses concerned for appointment by the Brigade Council as Regimental Chaplain.
- (c) The Regimental Chaplain may nominate an Assistant Chaplain or Chaplains for appointment by the Brigade Council.

THE BATTALION

Section 5.05 **BATTALION STRENGTH:**

A Battalion shall consist of not fewer than three (3) active Companies.

Section 5.06 **COMMAND OF A BATTALION:**

- (a) The Officer Commanding a Battalion shall be nominated by the Officers and Chaplains of the Companies forming the Battalion and, if approved by the Brigade Council, appointed at its discretion.
- (b) The Battalion Commander shall nominate a Battalion Staff for appointment by the Brigade Council.
- (c) The Battalion Commander shall be appointed for three (3) years, and may be appointed for a further two (2) years upon re-nomination by the Officers and Chaplains of the Companies forming the Battalion.

Section 5.07 **BATTALION STAFF:**

The Battalion Staff shall consist of the Battalion Commander, the Battalion Chaplain, the Second in Command, Adjutant, Treasurer, and such other persons as may be considered necessary by the Battalion Commander.

Section 5.08 **BATTALION CHAPLAIN:**

- (a) The Battalion Chaplain shall be nominated by the Officers and Chaplains of the Companies forming the Battalion and appointed by the Brigade Council.
- (b) The Battalion Chaplain may nominate an Assistant Chaplain or Chaplains from among the Chaplains of the Companies forming the Battalion or, with the consent of such Chaplains, from among the Clergy of the area served by the Battalion for appointment by the Brigade Council.
- (c) The Battalion Chaplain shall be appointed for three (3) years and may be appointed for a further two (2) years upon re-nomination by the Officers and Chaplains of the Companies forming the Battalion.

THE COMPANY

Section 5.09 **THE COMPANY:**

- (a) The company shall be a parochial unit of the Brigade and it shall be formed in a parish and enroled by the Brigade Council at the request of the Incumbent. It may consist of any or all of:-
 - (i) The Senior Corps
 - (ii) The Junior Training Corps
 - (iii) The Young Training Corps
 - (iv) The Little Training Corps

With the exception that an L.T.C. shall not be formed until one of the other Corps has already been formed in the Parish. Special permission may be given by the Brigade Council to form a unit on its own, upon written request from the Battalion Commander, provided that action shall be taken within three (3) years to form another Corps.

- (b) The Company shall have a membership of not less than twelve (12) youth members (save with the written permission of the Brigade Council).

- (c) The Incumbent shall be the Chaplain of the Parochial company and may nominate an Assistant Chaplain for appointment by the Brigade Council.

Section 5.10 **OFFICERS OF THE COMPANY:**

- (a) The Incumbent shall nominate an Officer to Command the Company the Parish Company, who shall be approved by the Battalion Commander and Regimental Commander as appropriate (except in the case of an unattached Company) and appointed by the Brigade Council.
- (b) The Incumbent may also nominate one or more Officers, Officer Candidates, Warrant Officers and Civilian Instructors who shall be approved by the Battalion Commander and Regimental Commander, as appropriate, and appointed by the Brigade Council.
- (c) The Incumbent may withdraw nomination of any of these persons at any time, in which case the Brigade Council shall cancel the appointment of such persons.

Section 5.11 **UNATTACHED COMPANIES:**

- (a) An Unattached Company is one that the Brigade Council shall, for any reason, judge unsuitable to be attached to a Battalion.
- (b) A Company or Companies of a Battalion that, having fallen below the limit of three Companies and ceases to exist as a Battalion, shall, at the discretion of the Brigade Council, be declared to be Unattached.
- (c) Unattached Companies shall, for administrative purposes be associated with diocesan formations already existing, or the Brigade Council may make other provisions deemed suitable.

Section 5.12 **ACTIVE COMPANIES, BATTALIONS AND REGIMENTS:**

An active Company, or an active Battalion, or an active Regiment, is one which has fulfilled the requirements of the Brigade Council.

Section 5.13 **UNDERSTRENGTH UNITS:**

Where a Company, Battalion or Regiment is not of the strength required by this Constitution, it shall cease to remain on the register of Active Units kept by the Secretary of the Brigade Council. However, the Brigade Council may permit such Unit to continue temporarily in the hope of its recovering the

strength required. Such Unit shall be termed an Understrength Unit, and shall not qualify as an Active Unit for any purpose relating to elections contained in this Constitution.

OFFICERS

Section 5.14 AGE OF OFFICERS:

- (a) The ages of Officers and Warrant Officers shall be:-
 - (i) Officers and Officer Candidates - Not less than 19 years of age;
 - (ii) Warrant Officers (1st Class) - Not less than 19 years of age;
 - (iii) Warrant Officer (2nd Class) – Not less than 17 years of age.
- (b) Civilian Instructors shall be not less than 18 years of age.

Section 5.15 RANKS OF OFFICERS:

- (a) Ranks shall be granted to Officers only in relation to the appointments which they hold:-
 - Regimental Commanders shall be Lieutenant Colonels;
 - Battalion Commanders shall be Majors;
 - Company Commanders, when duly qualified, shall be Captains;
 - Officers shall be 2nd Lieutenants on first appointment, and may be promoted to Lieutenants when duly qualified.
- (b) Staff officers in Regiments may not be promoted higher than Major and in Battalions may not be promoted higher than Captain.
- (c) When Officers vacate their appointments for any reason, they may, at the discretion of the Brigade Council, be transferred to the Retired list with the retired rank of their last appointment. If they return to Active service by re-appointment and commission they may, at the discretion of the Brigade Council, keep the same rank they had prior to transferring to the Retired list.

Section 5.16 **OFFICERS AND WARRANT OFFICERS ON THE RETIRED LIST:**

- (a) All Officers and Warrant Officers on ceasing to hold any appointment in the Brigade for any reason may, at the discretion of the Brigade Council, be transferred to the Retired List of Officers and Warrant Officers.
- (b) The Secretary of the Brigade Council shall keep a register of Officers and Warrant Officers who, for any reason, have been transferred to the Retired List.
- (c) They shall be permitted to wear the Uniform of their rank (with the addition of the letter “R” placed above the rank badges) on the occasion of Annual Dinners, displays, or social functions, unless the Brigade Council, at its discretion, shall withhold permission. They may not wear Brigade Uniform on any other occasion.
- (d) Officers and Warrant Officers on the Retired List may, if duly nominated, be re-appointed to active employment by the Brigade Council for a permanent or temporary term.

Section 5.17 **USE OF TITLE:**

A member of the Brigade shall not be permitted to use any Brigade title except for its purpose in the Brigade.

CORPS

Section 5.18 **THE SENIOR CORPS:**

- (a) The Senior Corps is the Organization of senior sections of Companies, the ages of whose members are from 12 years to 19 years.
- (b) Every Senior Corps section shall be under the command of the Officer Commanding the Company.
- (c) The Senior Corps shall conform to all paragraphs of the Constitution, other than those which, by reason of their age reference, cannot apply to it, and shall obey all such rules and regulations, Dress Regulations and Brigade Council Instructions, as the Brigade Council shall make relating to it.
- (d) Sections of the Senior Corps shall be deemed to compose part of the Battalions to which their Companies are attached, but they shall not form a Battalion of their own.

Section 5.19 **THE JUNIOR TRAINING CORPS:**

- (a) The Junior Training Corps is the Organization of the sections of the Company, the ages of whose members are from 9 years to 11 years.
- (b) Every Junior Training Corps unit shall be under the Command of the Officer Commanding the Company.
- (c) The Junior Training Corps shall conform to all paragraphs of the Constitution, other than those which by reason of their age reference, cannot apply to it, and shall obey all such rules and regulations, Dress Regulations and Brigade Council Instructions, as the Brigade Council shall make relating to it;
- (d) Sections of the Junior Training Corps shall be deemed to compose part of the Battalions to which their Companies are attached, but they shall not form a Battalion of their own.
- (e) Units of the Junior Training Corps shall be permitted to attend Camp with Senior Corps units provided that they are given separate quarters and separate training. They shall, at no time, parade for training with Senior Corps units. They may, however, attend Church Parades, or Ceremonial Parades, with Senior Corps units, provided that they are paraded and marched as a separate formation.

Section 5.20 **THE YOUNG TRAINING CORPS:**

- (a) The Young Training Corps is the Organization of the sections of the Company, the ages of whose members are from 7 years to 8 years.
- (b) Every Young Training Corps unit shall be under the Command of the Officer Commanding the Company.
- (c) The Young Training Corps shall conform to all paragraphs of the Constitution, other than those which by reason of their age reference, cannot apply to it and shall obey all such rules and regulations and Brigade Council Instructions, as the Brigade Council shall make relating to it.
- (d) Sections of the Young Training Corps shall be deemed to compose part of the Battalion to which their Companies are attached, but they shall not form a Battalion of their own.
- (e) Units of the Young Training Corps shall not be permitted to attend Camp with Senior Corps or J.T.C. units. They shall, at no time, parade

for training with Senior Corps or J.T.C. units. They may, however, attend Church Parades or Ceremonial Parades with Senior Corps or J.T.C. units, provided that they are paraded and marched as a separate formation.

Section 5.21 **THE LITTLE TRAINING CORPS:**

- (a) The Little Training Corps is the organization of the sections of the Company, the ages of whose members are from 5 years to 6 years.
- (b) Every Little Training Corps unit shall be under the command of the Officer Commanding the Company.
- (c) The Little Training Corps shall conform to all paragraphs of the Constitution, other than those which by reason of their age reference, cannot apply to it, and shall obey all such rules and regulations and Brigade Council Instructions, as the Brigade Council shall make relating to it.
- (d) Sections of the Little Training Corps shall be deemed to compose part of the Battalion to which their Companies are attached, but they shall not form a Battalion of their own.
- (e) Units of the Little Training Corps shall not be permitted to attend Camp. They shall, at no time, parade for training with other units of the Company. They may, however, attend Church services, ceremonial parades, or social functions, but shall not form part of any of the regular C.L.B. formations.

-ARTICLE VI-

Section 6.01 **COMMON SEAL:**

The Brigade Council shall procure a Common Seal for the Brigade and arrange for the safe custody thereof. The Common Seal shall not be affixed to any instrument unless authorized by the express authority of a resolution of the Brigade Council or of a Committee of the Council empowered thereto and in the presence of at least two members of the Brigade Council who shall sign every instrument to which the Seal is so affixed in their presence.